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Town of Castle Rock

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

For

Printing for all departments within the Town of Castle Rock

Notice is hereby given that proposals will be received at the Finance Department, Town Hall, 100 N. Wilcox St., Castle Rock, CO 80104, on or before 5:00 p.m., Sept. 24, 2010, for a contract to print Townwide correspondence, in accordance with the Town of Castle Rock plans, specifications and contract documents. The Town of Castle Rock has the goal of establishing a printing agreement with an 1) offset printer and 2) digital printer or one in the same. The Town wishes to use the printers’/printer’s services as the primary printing service for every department within the Town.

Proposals shall be addressed and delivered to:

Town of Castle Rock 

100 N. Wilcox St. 

Castle Rock, CO 80104

Attention: Karen McGrath, Community Relations 

Any firm that wishes its proposal to be considered is responsible for making certain the proposal is received by the proper time. The receiving time in the Finance Department will be the governing time. Proposals received after the deadline will be returned unopened. Proposals must bear original signatures and figures. No electronic or facsimile proposals or modifications will be considered.  

Any questions concerning this RFP should be addressed to Karen McGrath, Town of Castle Rock, 100 N. Wilcox St., Castle Rock, CO 80104, or kmcgrath@CRgov.com. The company’s name and contact information must be included with the question. Proposals should provide a straightforward and concise description of the firm’s capabilities to satisfy the requirements of this request.  

Firms submitting a proposal may be required to give a presentation to the Town. This will provide an opportunity for the firm to clarify or elaborate on the proposal but will in no way change the original submission. The Town’s request of a presentation shall not constitute acceptance of a proposal.

Request for Proposals

For

Printing for all departments within the Town of Castle Rock

Section 1. General Information 

The Town currently is using two printers, selected during a 2009 RFP process, to produce different types of communications. The Town needs access to digital, offset and signage printers. We wish to continue the concept of a printing partnership. Our hope is that such a partnership will: 

· Create a cost-saving relationship with a high-quality printer.

· Allow the Town to track concurrent print jobs, which might be printed together on press to save money.

· Streamline the printing of monthly and quarterly publications, postcards, election materials and more. 

· Provide seamless mailing services. (Note: We have our own postage permit number.)

· Result in a quick turnaround, when needed. (It is imperative that the selected printer can be available 24/7.) 

· Ensure deadlines are met on every printing job.

The evaluation committee may choose to select a firm based on the written proposals, but may also hold interviews during the evaluation process.  

Section 2. Preliminary Schedule

The following are estimated dates and are not binding:

2.A
Printer Selection

Advertise for proposals


August-September


Receive proposals



Sept. 24, 2010, by 5:00 p.m.

Selection Committee



Review proposals/samples

Sept. 27-Oct.8, 2010



Select finalists



Oct. 13, 2010

Section 3. Description of Project

3.A
Goals and Objectives

The Town of Castle Rock is seeking professional services from a qualified offset and digital printer to establish a cost-effective working relationship. The relationship will be of the highest quality, with flexibility for quick turnaround times and strategic printing of materials. This should include, but not be limited to:

· Paper that is high in quality but cost effective.

· Strategic purchasing of envelopes and paper in bulk to save on costs.

· A convenient location of the printing presses and the offices of the printing company.

3.B
Historical Scope of Work – 2009
Over the past year, we have reviewed our past printing, which we are using as the basis for this proposal (see numbers 1-7 below).

When requested, printing services must include both printing and mailing for all projects. We also must have access to the press to check for overall quality and accurate color, when requested.

Proofs are required on all printing jobs, and delivery service must be included in the cost (we will not pay extra for delivery).

1. Our graphic files:

We supply PDFs and/or InDesign, Illustrator or Photoshop files. We are Mac and PC-based. We collect all artwork and fonts.

2. We have a postage permit number for most mailings.

Proposals should be organized to address the specific tasks identified. Proposers are encouraged to recommend modifications to these tasks or to identify any additional services that are seen as necessary or desirable to provide a quality product.

1. Miscellaneous brochures – Base estimate for 10 different pieces per year:

· 4/4
Quantity – 300, 3,500 and 25,000

· 1/1
Quantity – 300, 3,500 and 25,000

· Base estimate on 11” x 17” piece folded in to a finished size of 8.5” x 11” 

2. Postcards, 6” x 11” – Base estimate for 20 different pieces per year:

· 4/4
Quantity – 300, 3,500 and 25,000

· 1/1
Quantity – 300, 3,500 and 25,000

3. Forms, 8.5”  x 11”

· 4-part carbon copy

i. 1/1
Quantity – 2,500

· 3-part carbon copy

i. 1/1
Quantity – 2,500

4. Stationery 

· Business cards (online ordering preferred)

i. 2/1
Quantity – 2,500

ii. 2/0
Quantity – 2,500

iii. 2/1 
Quantity – 2,500

iv. 1/1 
Quantity – 2,500

· Letterhead (online ordering preferred)

i. 2/0
Quantity – 2,000

· Envelopes (online ordering preferred; please order in bulk to save money)

i. Reg #10


Quantity – 150,000

ii. #10 window reverse flap
Quantity – 150,000

iii. #9 



Quantity – 300,000

iv. 8.5” x 11” white manila
Quantity – 1,500 and 3,000

v. 9” x 12” white manila

Quantity – 3,500

5. Recreation Guide (printed three times a year – different each time)

· 4/4

· 8.25” x 10.75” finished (16.25” w x 10.75” h flat)

· Full bleed

· Saddle stitched

i. 36 pages


Quantity – 27,000

ii. 48 pages


Quantity – 27,000


6. Outlook magazine (printed two times a year – different each time)

· 4/4

· 9” x 12” finished (18” w x 12” h flat)

· Full bleed

· Saddle stitched

· Glossy, heavier stock

i. 20 pages


Quantity – 5,000 and 24,000

ii. 24 pages 


Quantity – 5,000 and 24,000

7. Banners, vinyl

· 2/2 misc. sizes

Quantity – 1 (two-sided, grommets, wind slits)
· 4/4 misc. sizes

Quantity – 1 (two-sided, grommets, wind slits)
3.C
Budget


TBD

3.D
Type of Contract
A three-year contract, renewable annually. The selected vendor will be expected to enter into a standard contract similar to that presented in Appendix B.

Section 4. Evaluation Process

Print RFP process of evaluation

The Town will score each response based on four objectives. Each printer will be reviewed, and scores will be assigned per levels listed below. The highest score is
100 points. 

4.A 
Quality and flexibility – 50 points maximum:
· Overall quality, customer service, location and facilities the printer owns

· Type(s) of press(es)

· Capabilities (offset, digital, signage)

· Number of presses and their proximity to Castle Rock

· Is the business based in Douglas County? Are the presses in Douglas County?

· How much employee time would be spent on travel/delivery/
press visits?

4.B
Cost – 40 points maximum:

· Cost to produce, mail and deliver the project

4.C
Samples – 5 points maximum:
· Quality of printing samples

· Color – Vibrant and sharp; contrast in color; degree of tones in an image (ranging from highlight to shadow)
· Ink’s appearance on paper (no spots)

· Is the sample color clean, or are there areas where the ink splatters and blotches?

· Are the traps clear, or do you notice traps around images?

· Project form – Quality of the binding, bleeds, die cuts, scores
and folds.
· Paper choice – Does the printing show off the high image quality with sharp and clean color? Is the type clear and easy to read?
· How many samples were attached? Did the samples reflect several types of printing projects?
· On one- or two-color samples, are the levels of color sharp and crisp? Are the black inks solid black?

4.D
Paper and ink – 5 points maximum:
· Rate the types of paper submitted. (Paper is rated on a standard scale of one to five [one being the highest quality, five being the lowest] based on quality and durability.)

· What type of paper is being recommended?
· What is the quality of their in-house paper (printer-preferred)?
· Is the printer flexible to print on other types of paper, which the Town may request?
· Is recycled paper available and affordable?
· Does the printer print with Soy-based inks?
Section 5. Submittal Requirements

Interested firms are invited to submit proposals that contain the following information:

5.A
Introduction and Executive Summary 

a. Provide the firm’s name and business address; year established; type of ownership and parent company, if any; the project manager’s name and experience; and contact information for the project manager, including telephone, fax, and e-mail address.

b. In the Executive Summary, highlight the major facts and features of the proposal, including any conclusions, assumptions and recommendations.

5.B
Experience, Structure and Personnel
Provide a company profile with information including:

a. Company ownership, the state in which the company is incorporated and the date of incorporation;

b. Location of the company offices;

c. Location of the office in Colorado;

d. Number of employees, both locally and nationally;

e. Location(s) from which employees will be assigned;

f. Name, address and telephone number of the firm’s point of contact for a contract resulting from this RFP; and

i. Company background, history and why the proposer is qualified to provide the services described in this RFP

ii. A description of the firm’s structure, including resumes of the principals, project manager and professional staff (qualifications, expertise, level of involvement, etc.) who would work directly with the Town;

iii. Samples of a minimum of three major projects the firm has completed that would be relevant to this project. Include the client’s name; the name of a contact person who can provide a reference; a description of the nature of the work, the size and complexity of the project; and the agreed-upon fee arrangements and final fee; and

iv. Any other information you believe makes your work superior to that of other firms. 

5.C
Cost Proposal 

The cost proposal should include:

· A budget for the printing projects listed

· Samples of the firm’s printing

· Information on the firm’s mailing services

· Details on any other fees or charges

5.D
Proposers’ References
Proposers should provide contact information for a minimum of three similar clients (ideally, local governments served within the last five years) as references.  Information provided shall include:

a. Client’s name;

b. Project description;

c. Project dates;

d. Staff assigned to referenced project who would work with the Town; and

e. Client’s project manager’s name and telephone number.

The Town may contact and evaluate the references; contact any proposer to clarify any response; contact any current users of a proposing firm’s services; solicit information from any available source concerning any aspect of a proposal; and seek and review any other information deemed pertinent to the evaluation process.  

The Town, at its sole discretion, shall determine the appropriate weight and significance of any evaluation criteria.

5.E
Conflicts of Interest 

Please submit a statement describing any potential conflict of interest or appearance of conflict of interest that could be created by providing services to the Town. Indicate if the firm has ever had a prior contract with any governmental entity terminated for any reason, and provide an explanation. Indicate any pending litigation and/or regulatory action by any oversight body or entity that could have an adverse material impact on the firm’s ability to serve as the printing provider to the Town.

5.F
Cooperative Agreements

The Town of Castle Rock is a member of the Colorado Multiple Assembly of Purchasing Officials, whose membership is comprised of 40 public purchasing departments representing state, county, municipal, special district, school district and other local area government agencies. The Town also is affiliated with the Colorado Cooperative Education Purchasing Council, whose membership is comprised of 20 Front Range public purchasing departments representing approximately 70 percent of the K‑12 public school enrollment in the State of Colorado. We hereby request that any member of MAPO/CEPC be permitted to avail itself of this contract and purchase any and all items specified herein from the successful vendor(s) at the contract price(s) established herein. Each MAPO/CEPC member, which uses a contract(s) resulting here from, would establish its own contract; issue its own orders; be invoiced there from; make its own payments; and issue its own exemption certificates as required by the vendor.  It is understood and agreed that the Town of Castle Rock is not a legally binding party to any contractual agreement made between a MAPO/CEPC member and the Vendor as a result of this solicitation.
Section 6. Selection of Printer
Award is contingent upon the successful negotiation of final contract terms. If contract negotiations cannot be concluded successfully, the Town may negotiate a contract with any other proposer or withdraw the RFP.

AWARD SELECTION PROCESS.  Selection of qualified proposers will be based on the Town’s sole determination as to how well proposals meet the Town’s needs. Additional questions may be asked of proposers, and interviews may be conducted.  Proposers will be notified of any additional required information or interviews after the written proposals have been evaluated.  The Town reserves the right to reject all proposals.

At the Town’s option, discussions may be had with firms determined to be reasonably susceptible of being selected for an award. Discussions may be for the purpose of clarification, to assure full understanding of and responsiveness to, the solicitation requirements. In conducting discussions, the Town will not disclose information derived from proposals submitted by competing proposers.

CANCELATION OF SOLICITATION. The Town may cancel this solicitation at any time.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. All proposals shall comply with current federal, state, local and other laws relative thereto.

EXPERIENCE AND COMPETENCY. The successful proposer shall be skilled and regularly engaged in the type of work specified. Consideration will be given not only to the financial standing but also to the general competency of the proposer for the performance of the work specified in the contract documents.  

INFORMED PROPOSER. Proposers are expected to fully inform themselves as to the conditions, requirements, and specifications before submitting proposals. Failure to do so will be at a proposer’s own risk. The selected printer will be required to enter into an on-call agreement in the form attached.

PROPOSAL COSTS.  The Town is not liable for any costs incurred by proposers before entering into a formal contract. Costs of developing the proposals, or any other such expenses incurred by the Proposer in responding to the RFP, are entirely the responsibility of the proposer and shall not be reimbursed in any manner by the Town.

PROPOSAL MODIFICATIONS. Any proposer who wishes to make modifications to a proposal already received by the Town the submittal deadline must withdraw his proposal in order to make the modifications. Withdrawals must be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of this solicitation (see Withdrawal of Proposal). All modifications must be made in ink, properly initialed by proposer’s authorized representative, executed and submitted in accordance with the terms and conditions of this solicitation. It is the responsibility of the proposer to ensure that modified or withdrawn proposals are resubmitted before the submittal deadline.

PROPOSAL OPENING. Proposals will not be opened publicly, but a list of the names of companies submitting proposals will be available within a reasonable time after the submittal deadline. Proposals will be made public and may be inspected at the time of award.

PROPOSAL, REJECTION OF. The Town reserves the right to reject any or all proposals or any part of a proposal. The Town reserves the right to reject the proposal of any proposer that previously failed to perform adequately for the Town or any other governmental agency. The Town expressly reserves the right to reject the proposal of any proposer who is in default on the payment of taxes, licenses or other monies due to the Town.  

PROPOSER IS SOLE POINT OF CONTACT. The successful proposer will be the sole point of contact. The Town will look solely to the successful proposer for the performance of all contractual obligations that may result from an award based on this RFP, and the awarded proposer shall not be relieved for the nonperformance of any or all subcontractors.

SELL OR ASSIGN. The successful proposer shall not have the right to sell, assign or transfer any rights or duties under any contract entered into as a result of this RFP without the specific written consent of the Town.  

SIGNATURES. An individual who is authorized to bind the proposer must sign the proposal.  

WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL.  Proposers’ authorized representatives may withdraw proposals only by written request received by Karen McGrath before the proposal submittal deadline. After that time, proposers may not withdraw their proposals for a period of ninety days from the date of opening. At no time may the successful proposer(s) withdraw his proposal.

DHS CERTIFICATION. By submitting a proposal, the proposer hereby certifies that at the time of this certification, the proposer does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien; and that proposer has participated, or attempted to participate, in the 

E-verify program or the Department Program, as defined in C.R.S. §§ 8-17.5-101(3.3) and 8.17.5-102(3.7), respectively, in order to confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to perform the work under the public contract for services.
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